
 

 

THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED UTILIZING TELECONFERENCING AND ELECTRONIC MEANS 
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20. 

 
In order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, please consider the following: 

You are strongly encouraged to observe the live stream of the LAFCO Commission meetings at:  

https://zoom.us/j/97745217423?pwd=TUhPb3pMRExyQndzaXdZVlQ1dGRZZz09 
 

Webinar ID:  977 4521 7423  

Password:   935329  

Call in number:  1 669 900 6833 

1. Submit written comment on any matter within the Commission’s subject matter jurisdiction, 
regardless of whether it is on the agenda for Commission consideration or action. Submit your 
comment via email or U.S. mail by 1 p.m. on the Wednesday before the Commission meeting. 
You may submit comments via email to Imarquez@SLOLAFCO.com. Your comments will be read 
at the meeting; limited to 3 minutes per item. 
 

2. Submit verbal comment by calling (805) 781-5795; state and spell your name, mention the 
agenda item number you are calling about and leave your comment. Verbal comments must be 
received by the Clerk of the Commission no later than 1 p.m. on the Wednesday before the 
Commission meeting. Your comments will be read at the meeting; limited to 3 minutes per item. 
 

3. Submit live comment by joining the meeting and press the "raise a hand" button or if joining by 
phone only, press *9 to indicate a desire to make comment. The chair will call you by name or 
phone number when it is your turn to comment; limited to 3 minutes per item. 
 
* If you are joining by zoom & phone, still use the zoom raise hand button as *9 will not work. 
 

For detailed information and updates about COVID-19, please visit the County of San Luis Obispo 
webpage at https://www.emergencyslo.org/en/covid19.aspx. 
 

The San Luis Obispo LAFCO thanks you for doing your part to prevent the spread of COVID-19. 

Page 1 of 48

mailto:Imarquez@SLOLAFCO.COM
https://www.emergencyslo.org/en/covid19.aspx


SAN LUIS OBISPO LAFCO 

 Local Agency Formation Commission 

 Meeting Agenda 

March 18, 2021, at 9:00 a.m. 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The Local Agency Formation Commission is committed to serving the residents of San Luis Obispo 
County and the State of California by discouraging urban sprawl and encouraging the orderly formation 

and development of local agencies based on local conditions and circumstances. 

COMMISSIONERS  ALTERNATES 
Robert Enns, Chair, Special District 

Ed Waage, Vice-Chair, City 

Marshall Ochylski, Special District 

Steve Gregory, City  

Tom Murray, Public 

Debbie Arnold, County 

Lynn Compton, County 

Ed Eby, Special District 

Vacant, City 

Heather Jensen, Public 

John Peschong, County 

Meeting Location Contact Information 

ZOOM meeting info is provided on 
Agenda Cover & website. 

David Church, Interim Executive Officer 

Phone:  (805) 781-5795 | Fax:  (805) 788-2072 | www.slolafco.com 

MEETING ACCESS AND COMMENTS 

LAFCO Commission meetings can be viewed at:  

 https://zoom.us/j/97745217423?pwd=TUhPb3pMRExyQndzaXdZVlQ1dGRZZz09 

Webinar ID: 977 4521 7423  Password: 935329  

Call in number: 1 669 900 6833 Public Comments: On the agenda cover 

MEETING AGENDA 
Call to Order/Roll Call   

Approval of the Minutes:  January 21, 2021

Non-Agenda Public Comment Period 

This is the period in which the Commission Clerk will read out loud all non-agenda public comments that 
were submitted on or before 1 p.m. on the Wednesday before the Commission meeting. Following, there 
will be an opportunity to provide live comments; each speaker will be limited to a three-minute presentation.  
Go to the Agenda cover for more details on how to submit public comment. 

Consent Agenda 

A-1: Protest Proceeding Results for the Activation of Solid Waste Power for the San Simeon 
Community Service District - File #1-E-20 (Recommend Review and Accept) 

A-2: Protest Proceeding Results for Annexation #81 to the City of San Luis Obispo (Fiero East 
– West) - File #1-R-20 (Recommend Review and Accept)

A-3: CALAFCO Dues Update, Annual, & Quarterly Reports (Recommend receive and File) 

Page 2 of 48

(Pg 4-8)

(Pg 9-12)

(Pg 13-30)

https://zoom.us/j/97745217423?pwd=TUhPb3pMRExyQndzaXdZVlQ1dGRZZz09


LAFCO Agenda – March 18, 2021    Page 2 

Regular Matters 

B-1: Partial Fee Waiver Request - Cayucos Sanitary District (Water Resource Reclamation 
Facility) Annexation and Sphere of Influence Amendment (Recommend Review and 
Approval) 

B-2: Appointment of Regular and Alternate Public Members to the Commission (Recommend 
Review and Approval) 

Closed Session 

C-1: CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL--EXISTING LITIGATION 

Government Code Section 54956.9 paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) 

Name of case: San Luis Obispo Local Agency Formation Commission, et. al. v. City of 
Pismo Beach, et. al. Superior Court Case No. CV130383; 2d Civ. No. B296968 

C-2: Closed session pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 
Public Employee/Employee Appointment – Title: Executive Officer 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 Conference with Labor Negotiators 
Agency designated representatives: (Legal Counsel and Interim Executive Officer) 
Unrepresented employee: Executive Officer  

Commissioner Comments  

Legal Counsel Comments  

Executive Officer Comments 

Adjournment  

Note: 1.) In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to participate 

at this meeting, please contact the Clerk at 805-781-5795. Notification provided a minimum of 48 hours prior to the 
meeting will enable the Clerk to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Pursuant to the 

ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically disabled.  2.)  It is required by Government Code Section 84308 

that a participant in a LAFCO proceeding who has a financial interest in the decision and who has made a campaign 
contribution of more than $250 to any Commissioner within (12) months prior, must disclose the contribution. If you are 
affected, please notify Commission Staff before the hearing. 

Submitted Proposals and Sphere of Influence Municipal Service Review Updates 

File # Name Project Status 

Proposals 

2-R-21 Anx #2 & SOI to the Cayucos Sanitary District (WRF) Submitted 2-19-2021. In 30 Day Review Period. 

1-R-21 Anx #82 to City of San Luis Obispo (Froom Ranch) Submitted 2-9-2021. Info hold letter sent 3-9-2021. 

4-R-20 Anx #29 to NCSD (Torres) Info hold sent 11-20-20. 

3-R-20 Anx #90 to Paso Robles (Gateway) Info hold sent 11-6-20. 

1-R-20 Anx #81 to SLO (Fiero East – West) Protest Process Verification. Condition Compliance. 

2-S-19 SOI Amendment Tri-W site Info hold sent 11-14-19. 

1-E-20 San Simeon CSD Activation of Solid Waste Power Protest Process Verification. 

SOI/MSR 

1-S-20 North County (Templeton, San Miguel, Heritage Ranch) Gathering Information. Preparing draft MSR. 

Page 3 of 48

(Pg 31-33)

(Pg 34-48)



TO: MEMBERS, FORMATION COMMISSION 

FROM: DAVID CHURCH, INTERIM LAFCO EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
IMELDA MARQUEZ, LAFCO ANALYST 

DATE: MARCH 18, 2021 

SUBJECT: PROTEST PROCEEDING RESULTS FOR THE ACTIVITION OF 
THE SOLID WASTE POWER FOR THE SAN SIMEON 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT - FILE #1-E-20 

Recommendation.  It is respectfully recommended, 
that the results of the Protest Hearing for the 
Activation of the Solid Waste power for the San 
Simeon Community Service District (CSD) be 
accepted by the Commission. 

Summary. The Commission approved by resolution the activation of the Solid 
Waste power for the San Simeon CSD on November 19, 2020. A properly 
noticed Conducting Authority Hearing (Protest Hearing) was conducted on 
January 22, 2021. The LAFCO Executive Officer (EO) conducted the Protest 
Process pursuant to the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act and as delegated to the EO 
by the Commission under Government Code Section 57000(c). 

The Protest Hearing was held via Zoom as allowed under the Covid-19 public 
meeting regulations. This was the date, time and place of a hearing for the 
submittal of written protests from registered voters and/or property owners within 
the San Simeon CSD boundary area. The Executive Officer is to determine the 
validity and number of written protests consistent with Government Code 
Sections 56707, 56708, and 56710.  

Registered Voters. The County Clerk confirmed the results for the Registered 
Voters that submitted written protests. The attached memo documents that 11 
valid written protests were submitted prior to the adjournment of the hearing. This 
equated to about 6% of the Registered Voters in the Service Area of the CSD. 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 57075 (a)(3), the number of registered 
voters protesting the change of organization did not reach 25%. 

Land Owners. The total number of land owners that submitted written protests was 
five with an assessed value of $515,123. These are about 1% of the total number of 

land owners and value found in the service area of the District. The number of land 
owners protesting the annexation did not reach 25% and the percent of land 
value did not reach 25%. 

The Final Results of the protest process are attached and document that the 
number of written protests that were submitted were below the 25% threshold 
required to cause a vote of the Registered Voters on this matter. The activation 
of the Solid Waste power is approved and the Certificate of Completion will be 
filed by the Executive Officer.  

LAFCO - San Luis Obispo - Local Agency Formation Commission 
SLO LAFCO - Serving the Area of San Luis Obispo County 

COMMISSIONERS 

Chairperson 

ROBERT ENNS 

Special District Member 

Vice-Chair 

ED WAAGE 

City Member 

DEBBIE ARNOLD 

County Member 

LYNN COMPTON 

County Member 

MARSHALL OCHYLSKI 

Special District Member 

STEVE GREGORY 

City Member 

TOM MURRAY 

Public Member 

ALTERNATES 

ED EBY 

Special District Member 

VACANT 

City Member 

HEATHER JENSEN 

Public Member 

JOHN PESCHONG 

County Member 

STAFF 

DAVID CHURCH 

Interim Executive Officer 

BRIAN A. PIERIK 

Legal Counsel 

IMELDA MARQUEZ 

Analyst 

Attachments: 

A: Protest Final Results 

A-1-1Page 4 of 48



Attachment A 

Final Results - Registered Voters 

Final Results - Land Owners 

Final Results – February 9, 2021 

A-1-2Page 5 of 48



TO: MEMBERS, FORMATION COMISSION 

FROM: DAVID CHURCH, INTERIM EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
IMELDA MARQUEZ, ANALYST 

DATE: FEBRUARY 9, 2021 

SUBJECT: FINAL LANDOWNER RESULTS - PROTEST HEARING 
ACTIVITION OF THE SOLID WASTE POWER FOR THE SAN 
SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT FILE #1-E-20 

On January 22, 2021, at 9:00 a.m., the LAFCO Interim Executive Officer (E.O.) 
conducted a properly noticed Protest Hearing pursuant to the Cortese-Knox-
Hertzberg Act. This action has been delegated to the E.O. by the Commission 
under Government Code Section 57000(c). The Hearing was held via Zoom as 
allowed under the Covid-19 Public Meeting rules. This was the date, time and 
place of a hearing for the submittal of written protests from registered voters 
and/or property owners within the Service Area of the SSCSD. The Executive 
Officer has determined the validity and number of written protests consistent with 
Government Code Sections 56707, 56708, and 56710. A total of seven land 
owner written protests were submitted on time. One form was invalid because it 
did not include a date with the signature and one other because the name was 
not listed as a land owner on the Assessor’s tax roll. Five other protests were 
submitted after the protest hearing and were therefore invalid. The following table 
documents the results of the protest process for Land Owners:  

WRITTEN PROTESTS – LAND OWNERS 

Total Property Owners within the Annexation Area 529 

Total Valid written protests received 5 

Invalid Protests: 1 no date with signature; 1 name not on the Tax 
Roll; and 5 that were submitted after the close of the hearing 

7 

Percent of property owners protesting annexation 1% 

LAND VALUE 

Total Land Value of properties within District $50,297,973 

Total Land Value of valid protests $515,123 

Percent of land value owned by valid property owner protests 1% 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 57075(a)(3), the number of land owners 
and assessed value of the land of the submitted written protests did not reach 
25%. Therefore, the activation of the Solid Waste power by LAFCO is approved 
and the Certificate of Complete may be filed by the Executive Officer (57000(c)).  

LAFCO - San Luis Obispo - Local Agency Formation Commission 
SLO LAFCO - Serving the Area of San Luis Obispo County 

COMMISSIONERS 

Chairperson 

ROBERT ENNS 

Special District Member 

Vice-Chair 

ED WAAGE 

City Member 

DEBBIE ARNOLD 

County Member 

MARSHALL OCHYLSKI  

Special District Member 

STEVE GREGORY 

City Member 

LYNN COMPTON 

County Member 

TOM MURRAY 

Public Member 

ALTERNATES 

ED EBY 

Special District Member 

VACANT 

City Member 

HEATHER JENSEN 

Public Member 

JOHN PESCHONG 

County Member 

STAFF 

DAVID CHURCH 

Interim Executive Officer 

BRIAN A. PIERIK 

Legal Counsel 

IMELDA MARQUEZ 

Analyst 

A-1-3Page 6 of 48



TO: MEMBERS, FORMATION COMMISSION 

FROM: DAVID CHURCH, INTERIM LAFCO EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
IMELDA MARQUEZ, LAFCO ANALYST 

DATE: FEBRUARY 9, 2021 

SUBJECT: FINAL RESULTS – REGISTERED VOTER PROTESTS 
ACTIVITION OF THE SOLID WASTE POWER FOR THE SAN 
SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT FILE #1-E-20 

On January 22, 2021, at 9:00 a.m., the LAFCO Interim Executive Officer (E.O.) 
conducted a properly noticed Protest Hearing pursuant to the Cortese-Knox-
Hertzberg Act. This action has been delegated to the E.O. by the Commission 
under Government Code Section 57000(c). The Hearing was held via Zoom as 
allowed under the Covid-19 Public Meeting rules. This was the date, time and 
place of a hearing for the submittal of written protests from registered voters 
and/or property owners within the Service Area of the SSCSD. The Executive 
Officer is to determine the validity and number of written protests consistent with 
Government Code Sections 56707, 56708, and 56710.  

The following table contains Registered Voter information for the area as 
confirmed by the County Clerk:  

WRITTEN PROTESTS - REGISTERED VOTERS 

Total Registered Voters Within the Service Area prior to the Protest Hearing 194 

Total written protest forms received before the end of the Protest Hearing. 1 had 
no date with the signature and is invalid  
Total Protests Verified   

12 
-1
11 

Invalid: Written Protests Submitted after the close of the Protest Hearing. 8 

Percent of registered voters protesting Activation of Solid waste Power 6% 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 57075 (a)(3), the number of registered 
voters submitting written protests did not reach 25%. Therefore, the activation of 
the Solid Waste power by LAFCO is approved and the Certificate of Complete 
may be filed by the Executive Officer (57000(c)). 

. 

LAFCO - San Luis Obispo - Local Agency Formation Commission 
SLO LAFCO - Serving the Area of San Luis Obispo County 

COMMISSIONERS 

Chairperson 

ROBERT ENNS 

Special District Member 

Vice-Chair 

ED WAAGE 

City Member 

DEBBIE ARNOLD 

County Member 

MARSHALL OCHYLSKI  

Special District Member 

STEVE GREGORY 

City Member 

LYNN COMPTON 

County Member 

TOM MURRAY 

Public Member 

ALTERNATES 

ED EBY 

Special District Member 

VACANT 

City Member 

HEATHER JENSEN 

Public Member 

JOHN PESCHONG 

County Member 

STAFF 

DAVID CHURCH 

Interim Executive Officer 

BRIAN A. PIERIK 

Legal Counsel 

IMELDA MARQUEZ 

Analyst 

A-1-4Page 7 of 48



Final Results of Landowner and Registered Voter 

Written Protests Submitted in Regard to LAFCO File No. 1-E-20 

ACTIVIATION OF SOLID WASTE POWER FOR THE SAN SIMEON 
COMMUNITY SERVICE DISTRICT 

I, David Church, Interim Executive Officer, as delegated by the San Luis Obispo Local 
Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO), do hereby determine that the following are the 
final results of the Conducting Authority (Protest) Hearing held on January 22, 2021, at 
9:00 AM and concluded at 9:17 AM. 

Registered Voters. The total number of Written Protests submitted by Registered Voters 
totaled twelve (12) with zero (0) withdrawals. The total number of invalid forms was nine (9). 
One was submitted without a date and eight written protest forms were submitted late; after the 
protest hearing had been completed. The total number of valid protests received was 11. The 
County Clerk's Office confirmed that the total number of registered voters in the CSD's service 
area is one hundred and ninety four (194). The 11 valid written registered voter protests 
represent 6% of the voters in the CSD's service area. 

Landowners. The number of Written Landowner Protests submitted totaled eleven (11 ), with 
zero (0) withdrawals. The total number of invalid forms was seven (7), one (1) did not include a 
date with the signature, one (1) the name was not on the tax roll, and five (5) written protests 
were submitted after the protest hearing ended. The Assessor's Office provided the total 
number of Landowners and total assessed value of land within the District from the current tax 
roll. The total number of landowners in the Service Area is 529. The total number of valid 
protests submitted was five (5). This is 1 % of the total landowners in the area. The total 
assessed value of the land within the District is $50,297,973, the land value of the submitted 
protests is $515,123. This is 1 % of the total land value. Both the number of landowners and land 
value are below the 25% threshold specified in the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act that would call 
for a vote of the registered voters on the matter. 

Since the number of Landowners, or Registered Voters, submitting Written Protests is below the 
thresholds established in the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act, the activation of solid waste is 
hereby ordered as approved by the Commission at its November 15, 2020 hearing and pursuant 
to compliance with the conditions of approval adopted by LAFCO. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I attest to the above facts this 9th day of February 2021. 

David Church 
SLO LAFCO Interim Executive Officer 

Imelda Marquez 
SLO LAFCO Analyst 

Date: February 9, 2021 - Final Results 

A-1-5Page 8 of 48



TO: MEMBERS, FORMATION COMMISSION 

FROM: DAVID CHURCH, INTERIM LAFCO EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
IMELDA MARQUEZ, LAFCO ANALYST 

DATE: MARCH 18, 2021 

SUBJECT: PROTEST PROCEEDING RESULTS FOR ANNEXATION #81 
TO THE CITY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO (FIERO EAST - WEST) - 
FILE #1-R-20 

Recommendation.  It is respectfully recommended, 
that the results of the Protest Hearing for the 
Annexation of the Fiero Lane (East-West) to the City 
of San Luis Obispo be accepted by the Commission. 

Summary. On November 19, 2021, the Commission approved by resolution the 
annexation of the uninhabited area known as the Annexation #81 (Fiero East - 
West) to the City of San Luis Obispo.  Uninhabited is defined as an area that has 
less them 12 registered voters within it. This means that only the land owners 
within the annexation area can protest the LAFCO action.  

A properly noticed Conducting Authority Hearing (Protest Hearing) was 
conducted on January 22, 2021. The LAFCO Executive Officer (EO) conducted 
the Protest Process pursuant to the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act and as 
delegated to the EO by the Commission under Government Code Section 
57000(c). 

The Protest Hearing was held via Zoom as allowed under the Covid-19 public 
meeting regulations. This was the date, time and place of a hearing for the 
submittal of written protests from registered voters and/or property owners within 
the annexation area. The Executive Officer is to determine the validity and 
number of written protests consistent with Government Code Sections 56707, 
56708, and 56710.  

The total number of land owners that submitted written protests was one with an 
assessed value of $82,446. This one protest represents less than 1% of the total 

number of land owners and value found in the service area of the District. The 
number of land owners protesting the annexation did not reach 25% and the 
percent of land value did not reach 25%. 

The Final Results of the protest process are attached and document that the 
number of written protests that were submitted were below the 25% threshold. 
The annexation is approved and the Certificate of Completion will be filed by the 
Executive Officer after conditions of approval have been complied with.  

LAFCO - San Luis Obispo - Local Agency Formation Commission 
SLO LAFCO - Serving the Area of San Luis Obispo County 

COMMISSIONERS 

Chairperson 

ROBERT ENNS 

Special District Member 

Vice-Chair 

ED WAAGE 

City Member 

DEBBIE ARNOLD 

County Member 

LYNN COMPTON 

County Member 

MARSHALL OCHYLSKI 

Special District Member 

STEVE GREGORY 

City Member 

TOM MURRAY 

Public Member 

ALTERNATES 

ED EBY 

Special District Member 

VACANT 

City Member 

HEATHER JENSEN 

Public Member 

JOHN PESCHONG 

County Member 

STAFF 

DAVID CHURCH 

Interim Executive Officer 

BRIAN A. PIERIK 

Legal Counsel 

IMELDA MARQUEZ 

Analyst 

Attachments: 

A: Protest Final Results 

A-2-1Page 9 of 48



Attachment A 

Final Results - Land Owners 

Final Results – February 9, 2021 

A-2-2Page 10 of 48



TO: MEMBER, FORMATION COMMISSION 

FROM: DAVID CHURCH, INTERIM EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
IMELDA MARQUEZ, ANALYST 

DATE: FEBRUARY 9, 2021 

SUBJECT:  FINAL RESULTS FOR THE PROTEST HEARING OF ANX 
#81 TO CITY OF SLO (FIERO EAST – WEST) LAFCO NO. 
1-R-20

Summary. On January 22, 2021, at 11:00 a.m., the LAFCO Interim Executive 
Officer (EO) conducted a properly noticed Protest Hearing pursuant to the 
Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act. This action has been delegated to the EO by the 
Commission under Government Code Section 57000(c). The Hearing was held 
via Zoom as allowed under the Covid-19 Public Meeting rules. This was the 
date, time and place of a hearing for the submittal of written protests from 
property owners within the annexation area. The Executive Officer is to 
determine the validity and number of written protests consistent with 
Government Code Sections 56707, 56708, and 56710.  

The total assessed land value and total number of land owners within the 
annexation area is found below as provided by the Assessors Office. One 
written landowner protest was submitted. The land value of the one property is 
found below. The following table is used to tabulate the results of the protest 
process:  

WRITTEN PROTESTS – PROPERTY OWNERS 

Total Property Owners within the Annexation Area 189 

Total written protests received 1 

Percent of property owners protesting annexation 0.529% 

LAND VALUE 

Total Land Value of properties within annexation 
East -  $27,035,507 

West -  $37,770,086 
Total: $64,805,593 

Total Land Value of valid protests $82,446 

Percent of land value owned by valid property owner 
protests  

0.127% 

The protest submitted was below the 50% threshold needed to terminate the 
annexation. Therefore the annexation is approved.   

LAFCO - San Luis Obispo - Local Agency Formation Commission 
SLO LAFCO - Serving the Area of San Luis Obispo County 

COMMISSIONERS 

Chairperson 

ROBERT ENNS 

Special District Member 

Vice-Chair 

ED WAAGE 

City Member 

DEBBIE ARNOLD 

County Member 

LYNN COMPTON 

County Member 

MARSHALL OCHYLSKI  

Special District Member 

STEVE GREGORY 

City Member 

TOM MURRAY 

Public Member 

ALTERNATES 

ED EBY 

Special District Member 

VACANT 

City Member 

HEATHER JENSEN 

Public Member 

JOHN PESCHONG 

County Member 

STAFF 

DAVID CHURCH 

Interim Executive Officer 

BRIAN A. PIERIK 

Legal Counsel 

IMELDA MARQUEZ 

Analyst 

A-2-3Page 11 of 48



Final Results of Landowner and Registered Voter 

Written Protests Submitted in Regard to LAFCO File No. 1-R-20 

ANNEXATION #81 TO THE CITY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

(FIERO EAST-WEST AREAS) 

I, David Church, Interim Executive Officer of the San Luis Obispo Local Agency 
Formation Commission (LAFCO), hereby determine that the following are the final results 
of the Protest Hearing conducted on January 22, 2021, at 11 :00 AM and concluded at 
11:10 AM. 

Landowners. The number of written Landowner Protests submitted totaled one (1 ), with zero 
(0) withdrawals. The total count of unverified landowners, excluding duplicates, filing protests is 
zero (0). The total number of invalid forms was zero (0). The Assessor's Office verified the total
number of Landowners and total assessed value of land within the District. The total number of
landowners verified by the Assessor's Office is one hundred and eighty-nine (189). If all of the
Written Protests were verified that would bring the total to one (1) protest; 0.5% of the
Landowners in the area. The total assessed value of the land within the District is $64,805,593,
the land value of the submitted protests is $82,446. This is 0.1 % of the total land value. Both the
number of landowners and land value are below the 25% threshold specified in State Law that
would call for a vote of the registered voters on the matter. Since there is no possibility that the
written protests will meet or exceed the 25% of the number of landowners and the total land 
value in the proposed annexation area, no additional review is necessary.

Registered Voters. Less than 12 registered voters reside in the area making it uninhabited. 
This means that only written protests from landowners in the annexation area would be 
considered in this protest process. 

Since the number of Landowners submitting Written Protests is below the thresholds 
established in State Law, the annexation is hereby ordered pursuant to compliance with the 
conditions of approval adopted by LAFCO. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I attest to the above facts this 9th day of February 2021. 

David Church 
SLO LAFCO Interim Executive Officer 

Imelda Marquez 
SLO LAFCO Analyst 

Date: February 9, 2021 - Final Results 

A-2-4Page 12 of 48



TO: MEMBERS, FORMATION COMMISSION 

FROM: DAVID CHURCH, INTERIM EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

DATE: MARCH 18, 2021 

SUBJECT: CALAFCO DUES UPDATE - ANNUAL AND QUARTERLY 
REPORTS 

Recommendation. It is respectfully recommended that the Commission 
receive and file the attached California Local Agency Formation 
Commission (CALAFCO) Reports.   

CALAFCO Dues Update.  The new dues 
structure for CALAFCO spreads the costs 
through a population-based formula. The net 
result for San Luis Obispo LAFCO is that the 
dues decreased by $72 for a total of $4,850. The 
dues structure is attached. 

CALAFCO Annual Report for 2020. The 
Annual Report is attached and summarizes the 
accomplishments and activities of CALAFCO 
over the last year. 

CALAFCO Quarterly Report. This report is found in Attachment C. It 
provides a variety of information about CALAFCO, changes at LAFCO’s 
around the State, and a brief legislative update. Please review the report 
and let us know if you have any questions.  

 

Attachments 

A: CALAFCO Dues 

B: CALAFCO Annual 

Report 

C: CALAFCO 

Quarterly Report 

LAFCO - San Luis Obispo - Local Agency Formation Commission 
SLO LAFCO - Serving the Area of San Luis Obispo County 

COMMISSIONERS 

Chairperson 

ROBERT ENNS 

Special District Member 

Vice-Chair 

ED WAAGE 

City Member 

DEBBIE ARNOLD 

County Member 

MARSHALL OCHYLSKI  

Special District Member 

STEVE GREGORY 

City Member 

LYNN COMPTON 

County Member 

TOM MURRAY 

Public Member 

ALTERNATES 

ED EBY 

Special District Member 

VACANT 

City Member 

HEATHER JENSEN 

Public Member 

JOHN PESCHONG 

County Member 

STAFF 

DAVID CHURCH 

Interim Executive Officer 

BRIAN A. PIERIK 

Legal Counsel 

IMELDA MARQUEZ 

Analyst 

A-3-1Page 13 of 48



Attachment A 

CALAFCO Dues 

A-3-2Page 14 of 48



California Association of  

Local Agency Formation Commissions 

  

  

1020 12th Street, Suite 222, Sacramento, CA 95814 

Voice 916-442-6536    Fax 916-442-6535 

www.calafco.org 

 

 

February 9, 2021 

 

TO:  Member LAFCos 

SUBJECT: Adopted dues structure for FY 2021-22   

 

Dear Member LAFCos:  

 

As you know, the membership voted to approve a new dues structure on October 31, 2019 at the Annual Business 

meeting. After hearing feedback from member LAFCos during the meeting and receiving an alternate proposal from a 

member LAFCo for consideration, the CALAFCO Board formed an ad hoc dues committee on July 24, 2020.  

 

The committee met twice in meetings that were open to member LAFCos and heard additional comments from 

numerous LAFCos.  The matter was again taken up for consideration by the Board at their January 21, 2021 strategic 

planning workshop after having received a report from the ad hoc committee. The ad hoc committee’s report included 

all of the various dues models they considered over the course of their two meetings (16 in total).  

 

The new dues structure contains several variables that are, pursuant to adopted Bylaws, required to be considered by 

the Board annually as they set the dues for the following fiscal year. Those variables include a required update to 

population estimates provided by the CA Dept. of Finance (DOF), base dues amount, population cap, and the per capita 

rate. The baseline for the variables is the estimated total operational costs of the annual budget. During their 

deliberations on January 21, the Board considered one more model that contained the updated population estimates 

that became available in December 2020 (after the committee completed its work). This model used the updated 

population figures along with existing variables. In total, 17 options were considered. (All the Board strategic planning 

session and subsequent meeting documents are located on the CALAFCO website and accessible to all members.) 

 

After a lengthy discussion and careful consideration, the Board unanimously adopted the FY 2021-22 member LAFCo 

dues the following day during their regular Board meeting, which are included as an attachment. The bottom-line budget 

amount of $300,000, base rate of $1,000, and population cap of 700,000 remain the same as in FY 2020-21.  

 

The updated population numbers demonstrate an overall reduction in population (from the prior year’s numbers) by 

766,973. With a reduction in population and the use of the $300,000 bottom line budget amount, the per capita rate 

automatically adjusts upward from 0.013803 to 0.013943.  The per capita rate increase of $0.014 per 100 persons is 

because of the population decrease. Some LAFCos whose population decreased might have had an overall increase in 

their dues because the decrease in dues due to the change in population was less than the increase due to the change 

in the pro rata rate formula.   

 

Further, the Board’s adoption of the FY 2021-22 dues does not include a CPI increase (estimated at 3% by the DOF).  

 

We and the rest of the Board are available to answer any questions you may have. You are encouraged to seek out the 

feedback of your regional Board members. 

 

On behalf of the CALAFCO Board of Directors,  

 

 

 

 

Michael Kelley Pamela Miller  

Chair of the Board Executive Director  

 

 
Cc:  CALAFCO Board of Directors 

attachment 

A-3-3Page 15 of 48



CALAFCO Member LAFCo Dues for FY 2021-22
As adopted by the CALAFCO Board of Directors on January 22, 2021

Counties 58 Base Dues 1,000
CALAFCO Budget 300,000 Population Threshold 700,000
CA Population 39,782,419 Per Capita Rate 0.0139
Population for Dues 17,356,427 Budget from Base Dues 58,000

Budget from Per Capita 242,000

County

Updated 
Population 

Estimate 2020

Population 
Estimate for FY 20-

21 Dues

Population 
difference

Population 
For Dues 

Calculation
Base Dues Per Capita 

Dues

Base + Per 
Capita Dues 

FY 21-22

Total Per 
Capita Rate

Diff           
FY 20-21 to 

21-22
ALAMEDA 1,671,855 1,703,660 -31,805 700,000 1,000 9,760 10,760 0.0064 98
ALPINE 1,115 1,107 8 1,115 1,000 16 1,016 0.9108 1
AMADOR 37,577 37,560 17 37,577 1,000 524 1,524 0.0406 6
BUTTE 206,362 230,701 -24,339 206,362 1,000 2,877 3,877 0.0188 -307
CALAVERAS 44,286 44,953 -667 44,286 1,000 617 1,617 0.0365 -3
COLUSA 22,075 23,144 -1,069 22,075 1,000 308 1,308 0.0592 -11
CONTRA COSTA 1,149,800 1,178,639 -28,839 700,000 1,000 9,760 10,760 0.0094 98
DEL NORTE 27,193 26,997 196 27,193 1,000 379 1,379 0.0507 6
ELDORADO 192,012 189,576 2,436 192,012 1,000 2,677 3,677 0.0192 60
FRESNO 1,026,358 1,033,095 -6,737 700,000 1,000 9,760 10,760 0.0105 98
GLENN 29,507 29,691 -184 29,507 1,000 411 1,411 0.0478 1
HUMBOLDT 132,706 137,711 -5,005 132,706 1,000 1,850 2,850 0.0215 -51
IMPERIAL 188,090 195,814 -7,724 188,090 1,000 2,623 3,623 0.0193 -80
INYO 18,429 18,724 -295 18,429 1,000 257 1,257 0.0682 -1
KERN 912,975 930,885 -17,910 700,000 1,000 9,760 10,760 0.0118 98
KINGS 154,745 154,549 196 154,745 1,000 2,158 3,158 0.0204 25
LAKE 63,771 65,302 -1,531 63,771 1,000 889 1,889 0.0296 -12
LASSEN 28,872 30,626 -1,754 28,872 1,000 403 1,403 0.0486 -20
LOS ANGELES 10,171,593 10,435,036 -263,443 700,000 1,000 9,760 10,760 0.0011 98
MADERA 158,794 162,990 -4,196 158,794 1,000 2,214 3,214 0.0202 -36
MARIN 258,956 265,152 -6,196 258,956 1,000 3,611 4,611 0.0178 -49
MARIPOSA 17,778 18,031 -253 17,778 1,000 248 1,248 0.0702 -1
MENDOCINO 87,491 90,175 -2,684 87,491 1,000 1,220 2,220 0.0254 -25
MERCED 284,761 286,746 -1,985 284,761 1,000 3,970 4,970 0.0175 12
MODOC 9,416 9,422 -6 9,416 1,000 131 1,131 0.1201 1
MONO 13,447 13,986 -539 13,447 1,000 187 1,187 0.0883 -6
MONTEREY 441,290 454,599 -13,309 441,290 1,000 6,153 7,153 0.0162 -121
NAPA 138,711 143,800 -5,089 138,711 1,000 1,934 2,934 0.0212 -51
NEVADA 97,439 99,548 -2,109 97,439 1,000 1,359 2,359 0.0242 -15
ORANGE 3,190,832 3,260,012 -69,180 700,000 1,000 9,760 10,760 0.0034 98
PLACER 397,469 397,368 101 397,469 1,000 5,542 6,542 0.0165 57
PLUMAS 18,246 19,374 -1,128 18,246 1,000 254 1,254 0.0687 -13
RIVERSIDE 2,449,299 2,500,975 -51,676 700,000 1,000 9,760 10,760 0.0044 98
SACRAMENTO 1,562,242 1,572,886 -10,644 700,000 1,000 9,760 10,760 0.0069 98
SAN BENITO 62,789 60,067 2,722 62,789 1,000 875 1,875 0.0299 46
SAN BERNARDINO 2,184,112 2,230,602 -46,490 700,000 1,000 9,760 10,760 0.0049 98
SAN DIEGO 3,352,145 3,398,672 -46,527 700,000 1,000 9,760 10,760 0.0032 98
SAN FRANCISCO 899,891 905,637 -5,746 700,000 1,000 9,760 10,760 0.0120 98
SAN JOAQUIN 776,068 782,662 -6,594 700,000 1,000 9,760 10,760 0.0139 98
SAN LUIS OPISPO 276,151 284,126 -7,975 276,151 1,000 3,850 4,850 0.0176 -72
SAN MATEO 775,132 792,271 -17,139 700,000 1,000 9,760 10,760 0.0139 98
SANTA BARBARA 451,329 460,444 -9,115 451,329 1,000 6,293 7,293 0.0162 -62
SANTA CLARA 1,962,251 2,011,436 -49,185 700,000 1,000 9,760 10,760 0.0055 98
SANTA CRUZ 270,067 282,627 -12,560 270,067 1,000 3,766 4,766 0.0176 -135
SHASTA 177,692 180,198 -2,506 177,692 1,000 2,478 3,478 0.0196 -9
SIERRA 3,117 3,129 -12 3,117 1,000 43 1,043 0.3348 0
SISKIYOU 43,792 44,186 -394 43,792 1,000 611 1,611 0.0368 1
SOLANO 440,198 453,784 -13,586 440,198 1,000 6,138 7,138 0.0162 -125
SONOMA 491,134 515,486 -24,352 491,134 1,000 6,848 7,848 0.0160 -267
STANISLAUS 555,955 572,000 -16,045 555,955 1,000 7,752 8,752 0.0157 -143
SUTTER 101,160 101,418 -258 101,160 1,000 1,410 2,410 0.0238 10
TEHEMA 65,266 65,119 147 65,266 1,000 910 1,910 0.0293 11
TRINITY 13,291 13,389 -98 13,291 1,000 185 1,185 0.0892 0
TULARE 480,788 487,733 -6,945 480,788 1,000 6,704 7,704 0.0160 -28
TUOLUMNE 52,353 53,976 -1,623 52,353 1,000 730 1,730 0.0330 -15
VENTURA 841,439 869,486 -28,047 700,000 1,000 9,760 10,760 0.0128 98
YOLO 221,718 229,023 -7,305 221,718 1,000 3,091 4,091 0.0185 -70
YUBA 79,089 79,087 2 79,089 1,000 1,103 2,103 0.0266 11

39,782,419 17,356,427 58,000 242,000 300,000

A-3-4Page 16 of 48



Attachment B 
 

CALAFCO Annual Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A-3-5Page 17 of 48



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 2020 
ANNUAL REPORT 

   

 

  

CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION 
COMMISSIONS 

Email: info@calafco.org 

Website: www.calafco.org 

 

1020 12th Street, Ste. 222 

Sacramento, CA 95814  

Tel: 916-442-6536 

 

California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions 

A-3-6Page 18 of 48



  

 
 

FROM THE CALAFCO EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
For just about all of us, 2020 was quite a challenge. During the year, the California 
Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions (CALAFCO) dedicated itself to 
meet the new and evolving needs of our members. As they reinvented the way they work 
and deliver services, so did we.  
 

Although we were unable to gather in person in March for our annual Staff Workshop or in October for our Annual 
Conference, we stayed connected with virtual meetings and virtual educational events. We learned from each 
other as we supported one another through a historic time. CALAFCO stood in support of our member LAFCos by 
shifting the way we provide supportive services and adjusted priorities to meet their changing needs.   
 
2020 will be remembered as the year we would all like to forget. But doing so means we also forget the many 
things we learned – about ourselves as strong, capable, and resilient beings, and about the power of collective 
support, collaborative and innovative problem solving, and about our ability to generate hope for systemic and 
sustainable change.  
 
Without missing a beat, LAFCos throughout the state continued to provide the necessary leadership in fulfilling 
their missions, and in supporting their respective local agencies and the communities they serve. I would like to 
take this opportunity to thank all of our member LAFCos for their dedicated, focused and steadfast commitment to 
the work they do and the people they serve. 
 
I also want to thank the CALAFCO regional staff for their support and contributions to the Association. A special 
thank you to our Associate member partners for their generous support of CALAFCO.  Last but certainly not least, 
I want to express my gratitude to the CALAFCO Board of Directors, all of whom worked tirelessly throughout the 
year in support of the ideals and mission of CALAFCO and all LAFCos. Through their leadership, vision and 
tenacity, the Association met the challenges of the year. 
 
I’m proud to represent the Association and all 58 LAFCos as well as our Associate Members, and present the 
2020 Annual Report, which highlights the collective work of the past year and many of the achievements we 
realized. We hope you enjoy this new format of the Annual Report. I look forward to what we can accomplish 
together in 2021. 

 
 
 
 

Pamela Miller  
Executive Director 
CA Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions  
  

A-3-7Page 19 of 48



 

FROM THE 2019-2020 CALAFCO CHAIR OF THE BOARD 
We are living in interesting times! 

 

Every time I think it can’t get worse; it does.  At the time I wrote this article, we were plagued by record 

heat and fires.  Often past chairs have written something like, “…it was a challenging but rewarding 

year”.  I will say it was a challenging year; I don’t think I can call it rewarding, but I have been proud 

to see how CALAFCO rose to the challenge and pivoted to address the impacts thrown on us by this 

pandemic.  We moved to virtual meetings, made Zoom available to our member LAFCos, held regular 

meetings with our member LAFCo Executive Officers/Clerks and made a series of virtual CALAFCO U classes and on 

demand webinars available free to our members; we continue to focus on “value added” to our members.  Much of the credit 

for this, and its success, is due to efforts by our Executive Director, Pamela Miller, who we were fortunate to retain, as an 

employee, after she announced her retirement; we are indebted to her.  Of course many others pitched in to make this 

possible and the CALAFCO Board provided needed support. 

 

We were forced to cancel our Annual Conference.  Many LAFCos were directly impacted as were many government 

agencies.  Many have died, the economy was rocked and many individuals struggle to meet basic needs; essential workers 

continue to provide service and others are forced to work out of economic necessity-risking their, and their family, health and 

lives. 

 

My father, the youngest of four, was born in 1927.  As I grew up, his parents from time to time, talked about the influenza 

pandemic of 1918.  I used to find those stories surreal; people confined to their homes, a red notice nailed to the door and 

many deaths.  My grandparents not only endured this pandemic but, in their lifetime, faced WWI, the Great Depression and 

WWII.  Much of this is now delegated to “just history”. My grandparents came thru it and someday 2020 will also be delegated 

to history.  

 

I’m proud that CALAFCO more than survived this challenge.  Our dues change let us avoid a structural deficit and a loss for 

the year even with the cancellation of the Annual Conference.  Our prudent reserves may allow us to cover unexpected costs, 

especially legal costs as we navigated AB 5, converting Pamela and Jeni to employees.   

 

We continue to proudly serve our member LAFCos and remain a viable and respected voice in Sacramento. 

Thanks to all of you. 

 

 

 

Michael R. McGill, P.E. 
Chair of the Board, 2019-2020 
CA Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions   

  

 

A-3-8Page 20 of 48



In 2019, CALAFCO began a two-year strategic plan to define the Association’s priorities and 

guide the work. There were three main strategic areas each with actionable goals for each 

of the two years.  This report highlights the achievements of the work in 2020 towards those 

goals. 
 

1. Serve as an educational resource to member LAFCo Commissioners, LAFCo staff, 

Associate Members, and stakeholders.  

2. Focus efforts on Association member development and communication.  

3. Serve as an information resource to all Association members, work as a legislative and 

policy advocate for LAFCo issues and provide information to the Legislature and other 

stakeholders. 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1. Serve as an educational resource 
Given the COVID-19 pandemic, in-person training and educational opportunities were impossible from mid-March 
through the end of 2020. This meant the cancellation of our annual Staff Workshop and Annual Conference. 
However, in early summer, CALAFCO staff began looking at how to deliver short educational sessions virtually – 
something CALAFCO had never done before. From August through December, six webinars were successfully 
delivered at no cost to our members. Additionally, each webinar was recorded 
and a new section created on the CALAFCO website to house all webinars for 
member on-demand viewing. Webinar topics included a three-part LAFCo 101 
series (including a newly designed session specifically for 
Clerks/Analysts and another for LAFCo Commissioners), 
adaptive leadership, and two sessions on LAFCos role in 
this “new/now normal” world of ours. In total, 274 LAFCo 
staff, commissioners and Associate Members attended 
these free educational offerings.  
 
Early in January CALAFCO hosted a CALAFCO University session in Orange County focusing on legacy costs 
associated with reorganizations.  
 
We are proud to continue to offer our members AICP credits when applicable for any educational session we host.   
 
CALAFCO remains a coaching partner with Cal-ICMA and through this partnership all of our 
members receive free access to professional development webinars, one-to-one coaching and other 
professional development resources. 
 

 

 

A-3-9Page 21 of 48



 

2. Focus efforts on Association member development and 
communication 
 

In response to our members, CALAFCO developed a short series of News Bulletins and distributed them to the 
membership during the first three months of the State’s shutdown. The Bulletins advised members of the latest 
Executive Orders and other noteworthy news items that impacted LAFCos and other local agencies.  
 
Beginning mid-March, we hosted weekly meetings for LAFCo Executive Officers and another for LAFCo Clerks to 
allow for collaboration and information sharing. These meetings transitioned to virtual meetings and continue as 
monthly meetings into 2021, with as many as 32 Executive Officers attending the monthly meeting.  
 
Knowing many of our members struggled to find effective ways for their Commissions to meet while maintaining 
transparency and public participation, CALAFCO purchased two Zoom licenses and provided the use of one of 
those licenses to our member LAFCos, along with our toll-free conference calling system, at no cost, as a way for 
our members to continue conducting business transparently.  
 

The events of 2020 were unchartered territory for many, and 
the fiscal aftermath will long be felt by all local agencies 

across the state.  CALAFCO recognized this as a 
unique time for LAFCos to champion the support of 

local agencies and help rebuild communities. In 
partnership with several Executive officers and one of 

our Associate Member partners, CALAFCO created a 
series of messaging materials to assist our member 

LAFCos in their facilitation of local discussions on the 
revitalization of their respective communities. These resources were introduced and distributed in December.  
 
In addition to our normal communication tools of Quarterly Reports and list serves, we also hosted virtual regional 
roundtables in December for our member LAFCos (as a replacement for our in-person roundtables at the Annual 
Conference) as well as a LAFCo Legal Counsel roundtable in October. With so many of our members meeting 
virtually, our Executive Director was able to attend sixteen (16) different LAFCo meetings the second half of the 
year.  
 
In response to the membership survey in 2019, CALAFCO staff spent time this year updating several of the most 
frequently used sections of the CALAFCO website. In addition to the creation of the new webinar archive, the 
CALAFCO University archives was updated, along with several sections within the LAFCo Law section. Other 
sections were completely reorganized and updated for 
easier member access to resource information and 
materials. CALAFCO is proud to continue earning the 
GuideStar Platinum Seal of Transparency for high level of 
nonprofit transparency.    
 
 
 
 

A-3-10Page 22 of 48



 

3. Serve as an information resource and legislative and policy 
advocate 

 
In addition to the work of enhancing the CALAFCO website as an informational resource, CALAFCO continued to 
participate in the Department of Water Resources’ County Drought Advisory Group and lead the efforts of the 18-
member Protest Provisions Stakeholder Working Group (Working Group).  
 
The 2020 legislative year turned out to be unlike any other and the pandemic turned legislation inside-out. The 
focus of the Legislature quickly turned to COVID response as well as responding to a historic year of wildfires and 
calls for social and racial justice and equity. At the direction of the CALAFCO Board, we ended our efforts to obtain 
state-level grant funding for LAFCos through sponsored legislation and did not sponsor an Omnibus bill in 2020. 
Instead, the Board made the proposal to make changes to statute pertaining to extension of services the legislative 
priority, along with the ongoing efforts of the Working Group. After seeking feedback and consensus from 
Executive Officers as directed by the Board, in late January the Executive Committee approved moving forward 
with seeking legislation. Given the late timing, the Association was unsuccessful in securing an author. As a result, 
CALAFCO did not sponsor any bills in 2020. It is uncertain if any bills (other than Omnibus) would have 
successfully passed through the Legislature given the shift in their focus mid-year. CALAFCO continued to support 
our membership through legislative action where appropriate and fiercely guarded LAFCo authority when 
necessary, tracking 32 bills and taking positions on 7 bills. 
 

Other 2020 highlights 
There were several other highlights in 2020 that were not part of the two-year strategic plan. First, we successfully 
transitioned our two primary part-time contractors (Executive Director and Administrator) to part-time employees 
effective September 1 in compliance with AB 5. Additionally, for the first time, CALAFCO conducted a virtual 
election for the Board of Directors.  
 

CALAFCO Financials 2020 
In July, the Board of Directors 
adopted a revised budget 
without any Conference 
revenue/expenses, with new 
estimated employer costs and 
the retention of the Executive 
Director. The lack of the 
planned 15% Conference net 
profit created a structural 
deficit that can be covered by 
the net balance carryover into 
FY 2020-21, which ended up 

larger than expected at the end of FY 2019-20 due to cost savings in 
other budget areas. By the end of 2020 it appeared savings into FY 2020-21 was continuing in many areas that 
will help the Association’s financial outlook going into another uncertain fiscal year.  

12,500, 3%

221,357, 
59%30,750, 8%

38,400, 
10%

0, 0%

35,900, 
10%

1,000, 0%

13,500, 4% 3,000, 1% 19,463, 5%

FY 2020-21 EXPENSES BY CATEGORY AND 
% OF TOTAL BUDGET

Board Personnel
Professional Services Office
Conference Workshop
CALAFCO U Legislative

300,009, 
80%

8,000, 2%
0, 0%

30,000, 8%

1,000, 0%
2,700, 1% 34,161, 9%

FY 2020-21 REVENUE BY CATEGORY AND 
% OF TOTAL BUDGET

Member LAFCo Dues Assoc Member Dues
Conference Workshop
CALAFCO U Misc. Revenue
Carry over

A-3-11Page 23 of 48



 

Looking ahead to 2021 
Our LAFCos are strong and resilient and led with remarkable courage during 2020. CALAFCO remains committed 
to continue building a resilient and sustainable Association that supports our members in their work. To focus 
resources on our members’ highest priorities in 2021, the CALAFCO Board of Directors’ biennial strategic planning 
workshop in January will create the foundation for the Association’s next two-year strategic plan.  As we move into 
our 50th year, CALAFCO remains committed to: 
 

• Serve as an educational resource to member LAFCo Commissioners, LAFCo staff, Associate 
Members, and stakeholders.  

• Focus efforts on Association member relations, development, recognition and communication.  
• Continue development of a strong and sustainable Association.  
• Serve as an information resource to all Association members, work as a legislative and policy 

advocate for LAFCo issues and provide information to the Legislature and other stakeholders.  

CALAFCO 2019-2020 BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STAFF 
OFFICERS (Oct 2019 – Oct 2020) 
CHAIR – Michael McGill, Contra Costa LAFCo, District Member (Coastal) 
VICE CHAIR – Michael Kelley, Imperial LAFCo, County Member (Southern) 
SECRETARY – Anita Paque, Calaveras LAFCo, Public Member (Central) 
TREASURER – Bill Connelly, Butte LAFCo, County Member (Northern) 
IMMEDIATE PAST CHAIR – Josh Susman, Nevada LAFCo, Public Member (Northern) 
 
MEMBERS (Oct 2019 – Oct 2020) 
Cheryl Brothers, Orange LAFCo, City Member (Southern) 
David Couch, Humboldt LAFCo, City Member (Northern) 
Shiva Frentzen, El Dorado LAFCo, County Member (Central) 
Blake Inscore, Del Norte LAFCo, City Member (Northern) 
Gay Jones, Sacramento LAFCo, District Member (Central) 
Jo MacKenzie, San Diego LAFCo, District Member (Southern) 
Margie Mohler, Napa LAFCo, City Member (Coastal) 
Tom Murray, San Luis Obispo LAFCo, Public Member (Coastal) 
Jane Parker, Monterey LAFCo, County Member (Coastal) 
Daniel Parra, Fresno LAFCo, City Member (Central) 
David West, Imperial LAFCo, Public Member (Southern) 
 
STAFF 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR – Pamela Miller 
ADMINISTRATOR – Jeni Tickler 
LEGAL COUNSEL – Clark Alsop, Best Best & Krieger  
CPA – James Gladfelter, Alta Mesa Group  
EXECUTIVE OFFICER – Stephen Lucas, Butte LAFCo (Northern) 
DEPUTY EXECUTIVE OFFICERS – Christine Crawford, Yolo LAFCo (Central); Martha Poyatos, San Mateo 
LAFCo (Coastal); and Gary Thompson, Riverside LAFCo (Southern)  

A-3-12Page 24 of 48



A SNAPSHOT LOOK AT  

  

  

 

  

   

 

 
 
 

  

  
A-3-13Page 25 of 48



Attachment C 
 

CALAFCO Quarterly Report – March 2021 
 

A-3-14Page 26 of 48



A 
message 
from the 

Executive 
Director 

 

 
 

 
               Greetings from your                                                                                                     

CALAFCO Board of Directors 
and Executive Director. It 

seems that our collective 
hope for an uneventful 

start to 2021 was met with 
laughter and resistance from the 
universe. However, we remain 
undaunted and resolute to move 

forward in partnership with our members to 
make great things happen in 2021.  

 
This Quarterly Report will begin by highlighting the good news 
in our CALAFCO family first, followed by Association updates. 
Happy reading! 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Santa Clara LAFCo Receives State APA Award for 
Communication and Outreach Plan 
After receiving the American Planning Association - California 
Northern Chapter’s “Award of Excellence – Communication 
Initiative”, Santa Clara LAFCo’s project then received the 
State Chapter’s 2020 Award of Excellence.  
 
 
San Bernardino and San Diego LAFCos Awarded 
Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation (SALC) Grants 
San Bernardino LAFCo, in partnership with the Inland Empire 
Resource Conservation District (IERCD), were awarded a SALC 
planning grant for $220,475. The planning grant project aims 
to create a local tool for the preservation of agriculture lands, 
which does not currently exist in San Bernardino County. The 
goals of this project would be to encourage the long-term 
preservation of agricultural lands within San Bernardino 
County and develop local mitigation tools to provide a way for 
municipalities to preserve agricultural lands while continuing 
to address housing and growth needs. 
 
San Diego LAFCo, in partnership with the Resource 
Conservation District (RCD) of Greater San Diego, the San 
Diego County Farm Bureau, the County of San Diego, and San 
Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG) were also 
awarded a SALC planning grant for $250,000. The purpose 
for the funding is to develop a community vision and strategic 
plan to increase and preserve San Diego region’s agricultural 
lands and preserve its economic viability in semi-rural and 
rural communities. The plan of action is to identify and 
monitor agricultural lands and uses to inform future 
preservation and enhancement opportunities. 

 
The Strategic Growth Council (SGC) added LAFCos to the list 
of eligible entities to apply for SALC grants in January 2019 
after many years of CALAFCO trying to get LAFCos eligible for 
state-level grant funding. Since then, San Bernardino and  

 
 
 
 
San Diego LAFCos are the first two LAFCos to initiate a grant 
application.  
 
CALAFCO congratulates Santa Clara, San Bernardino and 
San Diego LAFCos on their achievements! 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CALAFCO welcomes our newest Silver Associate Member, 
Holly Owen, Certified Planner. Holly’s services include 
Municipal Service Reviews and planning and feasibility 
studies. To contact Holly, you can email her at 
holly.owen@gmail.com.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

CALAFCO BOARD CHANGES 
The Board recently welcomed three new 
Board members. In late October, two 
new members were elected to the 
Board. Representing the Coastal region 
county seat is Christopher Lopez, Monterey LAFCo 
Commissioner and County Supervisor. The central region 
county seat also has a new representative, Merced LAFCo 
Commissioner and County Supervisor Daron McDaniel. In 
January, the Board appointed a new member to fill the 
unexpired term of recently re-elected Board member Cheryl 
Brothers (who unfortunately lost her home election). Filling 
that unexpired term for the southern region city seat is San 
Bernardino LAFCo Commissioner and City of Fontana Mayor 
Acquanetta Warren.   
 

The Board also gratefully acknowledges the outgoing Board 
members whose dedicated service to CALAFCO had a great 
impact: former Monterey LAFCo Commissioner Jane Parker 
(coastal region county rep); former El Dorado LAFCo 
Commissioner Shiva Frentzen (central region county rep); 
and former Orange LAFCo Commissioner Cheryl Brothers 
(southern region city rep).  
 
 
 

NNeewwss  ffrroomm  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  

CCAALLAAFFCCOO  QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY FFeebbrruuaarryy  22002211 

LAFCos in the News 

CALAFCO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Welcome to Our Newest Associate Member 

A-3-15Page 27 of 48

mailto:holly.owen@gmail.com


 
 
 
 

In November, the officers of the Board for 2020-21 were 
seated as follows: 
 
Chair – Michael Kelley, Imperial LAFCo (southern) 
Vice Chair – Anita Paque, Calaveras LAFCo (central) 
Secretary – Bill Connelly, Butte LAFCo (northern) 
Treasurer – Margie Mohler, Napa LAFCo (coastal) 
Immediate Past Chair – Michael McGill, Contra Costa LAFCo 
(coastal) 
 
During their November meeting, the Board made the 
following Committee appointments: 
 
Legislative Committee Elections Committee 
Bill Connelly (North) Blake Inscore 
Gay Jones (At-Large) Gay Jones (Chair) 
Jo MacKenzie (South) Chris Lopez 
Mike McGill (Coastal) David West 
Anita Paque (Central)  
Michael Kelley (a) (South) Awards Committee 
Chris Lopez (a) (Coastal) Daron McDaniel 
Daron McDaniel (a) (Central) Jo MacKenzie 
Tom Murray (a) (At-Large) Margie Mohler 
Josh Susman (a) (North) Anita Paque (Chair) 
 Josh Susman 
  

2021 Annual Conference 
David Couch 
Tom Murray 
Daniel Parra 

David West (Chair) 
 

The CALAFCO Board met virtually for their biennial strategic 
planning session on January 21, followed by a regular Board 
meeting the next day on January 22 (also virtual). The full 
meeting packet for both sessions is located on the CALAFCO 
website (and accessible to all CALAFCO 
members). During the strategic planning 
session the Board discussed several topics 
of critical importance to the Association, 
including the current dues structure and 
population cap used, the ongoing practice of 
using 15% net profit from the Annual 
Conference to balance the budget, and the 
issue of extension of services as it relates to 
local agencies not always seeking LAFCo 
authorization of exemption or approval to extend services.  
 
After spending time connecting as a group, the strategic 
planning session began with a dashboard review of the 
Association’s work in 2020. Highlights included the 
cancellation of both the Staff Workshop and Conference (and 
the fiscal impact to the Association as a result of the 
Conference cancellation due to the reliance of the 15% net 
profit to balance the budget); the creation and delivery of a 
series of webinars offered at no cost to CALAFCO members; a 
new section on the CALAFCO website that houses these  

 
 
 
 
webinars for on-demand viewing; updates to the CALAFCO 
website; and the legislative year that wasn’t. Additional work 
accomplished that was not part of the strategic plan for 
2020 included a successful transition of the two primary 
contractors to employees and the retention of the Executive 
Director (originally set to retire in the fall of 2020). The full 
2020 dashboard review can be found on the CALAFCO 
website.  
 

The Board spent a great deal of time discussing the member 
LAFCo dues issue after receiving a full report from the dues 
ad hoc committee. After reviewing the various models 
considered by the ad hoc committee (16 in total), the Board 
received one additional model that had updated population 
figures from the Department of Finance (using the existing 
FY 2020-21 model as the base).  Again, after much 
discussion, the Board gave unanimous consent to 
maintaining all of the existing variables in the FY 2020-21 
dues model, using the required updated population 
estimates and not adding the CPI increase (estimated at 3%) 
for the FY 2021-22 dues. This decision was formally ratified 
with unanimous approval during the Board meeting on 
January 22. An announcement regarding the FY 2021-22 
dues was distributed February 9, and you can find the dues 
on the CALAFCO website.  
  
The Board then discussed the ongoing structural deficit and 
dangerous fiscal practice of using an unreliable educational 
event net profit to balance the budget. They gave unanimous 
consensus to no longer using any net profit from any 
education event to balance the budget. Underscored this 
year without a Conference, the loss of that budgeted net 
profit created a structural deficit. That decision was also 
formally ratified with unanimous approval during their Board 
meeting on January 22.  
 

Later that afternoon there was a 
discussion about the problem of local 
agencies not seeking LAFCo authorization 
to extend services. The Board 
brainstormed non-legislative ideas for 
consideration this year as an interim 
solution to a legislative fix in 2022. The 
day ended with a brief conversation about 
SMGA and the relationship between LAFCo 
and investor-owned utilities. 

 
The Board will consider adopting the next two-year strategic 
plan (for 2021-22) at their April 30 meeting.  
 
During their January 22 meeting, in addition to ratifying the 
decisions noted above, the Board received the second 
quarter financial reports and directed the Executive Director 
to create a rolling two-year budget going forward (beginning 
with the draft FY 2021-22 budget) and adopted the 2021 
legislative policies with the recommended amendment of 
the Legislative Committee.  

NNeewwss  ffrroomm  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  

CCAALLAAFFCCOO  QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY     FFeebbrruuaarryy  22002211  
                                                    PPaaggee  22 

 

A-3-16Page 28 of 48



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
2021 STAFF WORKSHOP AND ANNUAL CONFERENCE 
Staff Workshop 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, CALAFCO’s Staff Workshop 
was once again cancelled. The workshop was scheduled for 
March 17-19 in Newport Beach.  
 
CALAFCO staff successfully negotiated a revision in the facility 
contract for 2022 at the same rates as 2021. We are still 
working with the mobile workshop vendors to try and roll over 
the deposits for that event and will keep you posted.  
 
We wish to thank our Workshop hosts, Imperial and Orange 
LAFCos who have graciously agreed to host in 2022 – third 
time is a charm they say! 
 
CALAFCO is currently polling LAFCo staff on their desire to 
have something offered for staff only in a virtual format. 
Watch for updates soon. If your LAFCo staff have not provided 
us that feedback, please do so by the deadline of February 
12.  
 
Mark your calendars for the Staff Workshop on March 23 – 
25, 2022. 
 

Annual Conference 
The Annual Conference, hosted by CALAFCO, is currently 
scheduled for October 6 - 8 at the Hyatt Regency Newport 
Beach John Wayne Airport. We are hopeful by that time we 
will be able to safely meet in person, and the Conference 
planning committee will begin their work very soon.  Watch for 
a call for program planning volunteers. 
 
 

CALAFCO UNIVERSITY 
We were pleased to offer six virtual 
sessions in 2020 between August 
and December. This year, CALAFCO is planning several 
virtual CALAFCO U sessions for the first half of the year. 
Once again, these sessions will be offered to our members 
at no cost to you. Watch for save-the-date announcements 
coming very soon. As a teaser, we are planning for a three-
part session on Fire and EMS Agency reorganizations in 
March and another session on Hiring Best Practices in May.  
 
 

CALAFCO ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE 
CALAFCO staff are working on the annual 
updates of the Membership Directory. It’s 
requested you respond to the request for 
updates when you receive them from us. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

The new two-year legislative session is in 
full swing and it is anticipated to be another 
interesting year. As the deadline to 
introduce legislation nears (Feb. 19), we 
are seeing a large number of bills relating 
to COVID-19 response, wildfire prevention, 
education, healthcare and bridging the 
equity divide.  
 

CALAFCO is sponsoring the 2021 Assembly Local 
Government Committee (ALGC) Omnibus bill and continues 
the work of the Protest Provision Rewrite Working Group as 
legislative priorities for 2021. The Working Group, consisting 
of 18 members (CALAFCO, CSDA, League, CSAC and reps 
from both local government committees) reconvened and 
has approved the submission of several obsolete special 
provisions relating to protests into the Omnibus bill. The 
group is also working on drafting language to consolidate all 
existing protest language into one section within CKH, and 
the subcommittee that is looking at the protest percentage 
threshold variances is reconvening. 
 
CALAFCO has also been working closely since last fall with 
Senator Caballero’s staff and the sponsors of SB 414 (2019-
20) on a redo of that bill. Our conversations have included 
offering amendments to write LAFCos back into the 
formation process of the new water authorities. Although the 
new bill has not yet been introduced (as of the writing of this 
Report), it is expected before the 2/19 deadline. 
 
The 2020 CKH Guide is now available to download from the 
CALAFCO website. We are also accepting orders for the hard 
copy version. Visit the CALAFCO website for details.  
 
Full 2020 legislative reports from the ALGC and Senate 
Governance & Finance Committees are also available on the 
CALAFCO website.  
 
All bills being tracked by CALAFCO can be found on the 
CALAFCO website inside the Legislation section of the site 
(log in with your member id first to access this section).  The 
CALAFCO Legislative Committee meets regularly and all 
meeting materials are located in the Legislation section of 
the CALAFCO website.  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NNeewwss  ffrroomm  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  

CCAALLAAFFCCOO  QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY     FFeebbrruuaarryy  22002211  
                                                    PPaaggee  33 

 
CALAFCO EDUCATIONAL EVENTS CALAFCO LEGISLATIVE UPDATE  

A-3-17Page 29 of 48



This section is dedicated to highlighting our Associate Members. 
The information below is provided to CALAFCO by the Associate 
member upon joining the Association. All Associate member 
information can be found in the CALAFCO Member Directory. 

City of Rancho Mirage 
The City of Rancho Mirage has been 
a Silver Associate Member since July 
2010. With a population of just over 18,000, the City of 
Rancho Mirage is located in the County of Riverside. The 
City offers an ubundant amount of sunshine, great climate, 
and related resort-style living. For more information about 
the City, contact the Director of Development Services, 
Jeremy Gleim, at jeremyg@ranchomirageca.gov, or at 760-
328-2266. Learn more about the City on their website at
www.ranchomirageca.gov.

County Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County 
The County Sanitation 
Districts of Los 
Angeles County has 
been a Silver Associate 

Member since July 2005. They are a public agency focused 
on converting waste into resources like recycled water, 
energy and recycled materials. The agency consists of 24 
independent special districts serving about 5.6 million 
people in Los Angeles County. The service areas cover 
approximately 850 square miles and encompass 78 cities 
and unincorporated areas in the county. For more 
information on the Districts, contact Donna Curry at 
dcurry@lacsd.org, or visit their website at www.lacsd.org. 

Rancho Mission Viejo 
Rancho Mission Viejo has 
been a Silver Associate 
Member since June 2005. They are responsible for the 
development and management of a governance structure 
for a 23,000-acre, 14,000 home planned community. For 
more information, visit them at 
www.ranchomissionviejo.com or contact Michael Balsamo 
at mbalsamo@ranchomv.com.  

QK  
A Silver Associate Member since 
September 2010, QK (formerly Quad 
Knopf) provides planning, engineering, 
biology, environmental and survey 
services to public and private clients. Their 
planners have previous experience working for public 
agencies, including serving as LAFCo Analysts and Executive 
Officers. They specialize in the San Joaquin and Sacramento 
Valley regions. For more information on QK, visit their 
website at www.qkinc.com, or contact Jerome Keene at 
jerome.keene@qkinc.com.   

CALAFCO wishes to thank all of our Associate Members for 
your ongoing support and partnership We look forward to 
continuing to highlighting you in future Quarterly Reports.  

Did You Know?? 
CALAFCO 2020 Survey 
Did you know we recently published the 
2020 survey of member LAFCos relating to 
COVID? The survey included questions about 
current and future operations, staffing 
models, commission meeting methods, and budget impacts. 

Meeting Documents Online 
Did you know that all CALAFCO Board of Directors and 
Legislative Committee meeting documents are online? Visit 
the Boards & Committees pages in the Members Section of 
the site. Board documents date back to 2008 and 
Legislative Committee documents back to 2007. 

CALAFCO Courses Archived 
Did you know that all CALAFCO University course materials 
are now archived on the CALAFCO website? Visit the 
CALAFCO website in the CALAFCO U Course Material Archive 
section. 

Mark Your Calendars For These 
Upcoming CALAFCO Events 

 CALAFCO Legislative Committee virtual
meeting – 2/19

 CALAFCO Legislative Committee virtual
meeting - 3/26

 CALAFCO Board of Directors virtual meeting – 4/30

The CALAFCO 2021 Calendar of Events can be found on the 
CALAFCO website.  

As we continue to face both known and unknown 
challenges, your CALAFCO Board and Staff wish all of you 
to stay safe and be healthy.  We thank you for your 
continued dedicated service to the communities you serve. 
Be well. 

NNeewwss  ffrroomm  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  

CCAALLAAFFCCOO  QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY FFeebbrruuaarryy  22002211  
  PPaaggee  44 

CALAFCO ASSOCIATE MEMBERS’ CORNER 

A-3-18Page 30 of 48

mailto:jeremyg@ranchomirageca.gov
http://www.ranchomirageca.gov/
mailto:dcurry@lacsd.org
http://www.lacsd.org/
http://www.ranchomissionviejo.com/
mailto:mbalsamo@ranchomv.com
http://www.qkinc.com/
mailto:jerome.keene@qkinc.com
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiT97Xo6qLLAhVKx2MKHYacD1UQjRwIBw&url=https://dmbinc.com/community/rancho-mission-viejo/&psig=AFQjCNE162iDBykrsQ_-dAnz70g1O6Gitw&ust=1457036689946453�


   
 
TO:  MEMBERS, FORMATION COMMISSION 
 
FROM: DAVID CHURCH, INTERIM EXECUTIVE OFFICER,  
 
DATE:  MARCH 18, 2021  
 
SUBJECT: PARTIAL FEE WAIVER REQUEST – CAYUCOS SANITARY 

DISTRICT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY SPHERE OF 
INFLUENCE AMENDMENT AND ANNEXATION 

 
RECOMMENDATION. It is respectfully recommended 
that the Commission approve this partial fee waiver 
request by the Cayucos Sanitary District. 
  
DISCUSSION. The Commission may waive the fees entirely or partially based 
on the information in this Staff Report and presented at the hearing. The 
Cayucos Sanitary District is constructing a new water reclamation plant to 
serve the unincorporated community of Cayucos. The District owns three 
parcels that include the site where the WRF is being constructed; a total of 
257 acres. The District indicates that area of actual site development is 
approximately 8 acres. The balance of the property (249) will be zoned 
agriculture. The approved Coastal Development Permit and Certified 
Environmental Impact Report calls for easements to preserve the agricultural 
resources.  
 
The partial fee waiver request uses 8 acres of developed area to calculate the 
fees.  This would reduce LAFCO fees by $5,870. Fees would be as follows: 
 

        Partial 
      Normal Waiver 

• Sphere of Influence Amendment    $3,500 $2,500 

• Annexation Fees ($5000+$10/acre)   $7,370  $2,500 

• CEQA        $1,000 $1,000   

Totals    $11,870   $6,000 
 

If the fee waiver is granted it would have a minor impact on the revenues 
collected by LAFCO. Also, the District has signed a Cost Accounting 
agreement that will be implemented if LAFCO Staff Costs exceed the fees 
charged. The impact of the fee waiver on the LAFCO budget would be 
minimal given that fees could be charged if the $6,000 in partial fees are 
exceeded. In addition, the fee waiver helps reduce the cost of a public facility 
to a public agency. This waiver also benefits the rate payers, although the 
amount is small.  
 
For these reasons it is recommended that the partial fee waiver be granted by 
the Commission. The District letter requesting the fee waiver is attached. 

 

LAFCO - San Luis Obispo - Local Agency Formation Commission 
SLO LAFCO - Serving the Area of San Luis Obispo County 

 

COMMISSIONERS 

 

Chairperson 

ROBERT ENNS 

Special District Member 

 

Vice-Chair 

ED WAAGE 

City Member 

 

DEBBIE ARNOLD 

County Member 

 

LYNN COMPTON 

County Member 

 

MARSHALL OCHYLSKI  

Special District Member 

 

STEVE GREGORY 

City Member 

 

TOM MURRAY 

Public Member 

 

 

ALTERNATES 

 

ED EBY 

Special District Member 

 

VACANT 

City Member 

 

HEATHER JENSEN 

Public Member 

 

JOHN PESCHONG 

County Member 

 

STAFF 

 

DAVID CHURCH 

Interim Executive Officer 

 

BRIAN A. PIERIK 

Legal Counsel 

 

IMELDA MARQUEZ 

Analyst 

Attachments 
 

A: Fee Waiver Request 

B-1-1Page 31 of 48



Attachment A 
 

Cayucos Sanitary District Fee Waiver Request 
 

 

B-1-2Page 32 of 48



CAYUCOS SANITARY DISTRICT 
 
 
February 19, 2021 
 
 
SLO County LAFCO 
1042 Pacific St. Ste. A 
San Luis Obispo, CA 93401-3656 
 
 
Dear Honorable Chairperson Enns and Members of the Board, 
 
This letter is to respectfully request a partial fee waiver for the Cayucos Sanitary District‘s 
(“District”) annexation/sphere of influence amendment application, submitted via mail on 
February 17, 2021.  
 
There are 257 acres of land being requested for annexation: 
 

• Lot 6NE, consisting of 6.53 acres, on which the District’s existing lift station is 
constructed 

•  Lot 7N, consisting of 15.33 acres, on which the District’s existing pipelines are located 
 
Both 6NE and 7N will be transferred to the County of San Luis Obispo in the near future.  
 
The remaining lots, 8 and 10, consist of 236.01 acres. However, only approximately 8 of those 
acres will be improved with District facilities, including the water reclamation facility and the 
solar farm. The remaining 228.01 acres will remain an agricultural zone.  
 
On these grounds, we request that the LAFCO fees for annexation and sphere of influence be 
based on those 8 acres only ($6,000 total).  
 
Thank you for your consideration of this request.  
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Rick Koon, District Manager  
 

 

 

 

 

 

Board President 
Robert Enns 
 
Vice President 
Dan Chivens 
 
Directors 
Shirley Lyon 
Hannah Miller 
Robert Frank 

 
District Manager 
Rick Koon 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mailing Address: 
P.O. Box 333 
Cayucos, Ca 93430 
 
Office: 
200 Ash Avenue 
Cayucos, Ca 93430 

 
Phone: 
(805) 995-3290 
Fax: 
(805) 995-3673 

 

B-1-3Page 33 of 48



 
 
 
 

TO:  MEMBERS, FORMATION COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  DAVID CHURCH, INTERIM EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
 
DATE: MARCH 18, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: APPOINTMENT OF REGULAR AND ALTERNATE PUBLIC 

MEMBERS TO THE COMMISSION 
 
Recommendation. It is respectfully recommended that the Commission 
select the regular and alternate Public Members to serve on LAFCO for 
the 4 year term (January 2021 - December 2024).  
 
The San Luis Obispo Local Agency Formation 
Commission (LAFCO) is selecting a Regular and 
Alternate Public Member to serve on the 
Commission. LAFCO is an independent 
government agency charged with encouraging 
the orderly formation and development of local 
governmental agencies, preserving agricultural 
and open space resources, discouraging urban 
sprawl, and encouraging the efficient provision of local government 
services.  The State Law that governs LAFCO is the Cortese-Knox-
Hertzberg Act.  The Commission is composed of seven voting members 
representing local government and the public:  two members are from the 
County Board of Supervisors, two members represent the City Councils, 
two members represent Special Districts, and one representative serves 
as the Public Member.  
 
The Public Member is selected by the other Commission members who 
serve on the Commission. The currently serving Public Member does not 
participate in the voting for the Public Member. To be elected to the 
Commission as a Public Member an applicant must receive at least one 
vote from each Commissioner Category per the LAFCO Bylaws. In other 
words, at least one vote from a City, County and Special District 
Commissioner is needed to be elected to the Commission. The application 
deadline was February 22, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. One candidate has 
submitted an application for the Regular Member position, Mr. Tom 
Murray; and one candidate has submitted an application for the Alternate 
Member, Ms. Heather Jensen. 
 
 

LAFCO - San Luis Obispo - Local Agency Formation Commission 
SLO LAFCO - Serving the Area of San Luis Obispo County 

 

COMMISSIONERS 

 

Chairperson 

ROBERT ENNS 

Special District Member 

 

Vice-Chair 

ED WAAGE 

City Member 

 

DEBBIE ARNOLD 

County Member 

 

LYNN COMPTON 

County Member 

 

MARSHALL OCHYLSKI  

Special District Member 

 

STEVE GREGORY 

City Member 

 

TOM MURRAY 

Public Member 

 

 

ALTERNATES 

 

ED EBY 

Special District Member 

 

VACANT 

City Member 

 

HEATHER JENSEN 

Public Member 

 

JOHN PESCHONG 

County Member 

 

STAFF 

 

DAVID CHURCH 

Interim Executive Officer 

 

BRIAN A. PIERIK 

Legal Counsel 

 

IMELDA MARQUEZ 

Analyst 

Attachments: 
 
A: Notice to Clerks, 
General Managers and 
Paper 
 
B: Applicant’s Application 
Form and Resume 

B-2-1Page 34 of 48



 
Today’s process includes a brief presentation by each of the applicants with time for 
questions by the Commission. After the interviews, the Commission deliberates and 
votes on the appointment. 
 
The Commission authorized the following selection process at its January 21st meeting: 
 

1. Authorize the opening of the application period. San Luis Obispo LAFCO should 
authorize the Executive Officer to open the application period for interested 
persons to apply for the regular and alternate Public Members. The notice stated 
that applications were due February 22, 2021 by 5:00 p.m. 

 
2. Sending the notice for the public position to the City Clerks and District’s General 

Managers via email and posting a notice in the newspaper. 
 

3. Interviews of the candidates at the March 18, 2021, LAFCO meeting.  
 

4. The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act allows the Commission to take action on the 
appointment after a minimum of a 21-day notice period.  

 
The process was completed and is consistent with the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act as 
described in Government Code Section 56325 (d).  
 
Both four-year terms would end December 2024. The regular Public Member appointed 
would serve as a “voting member”.  The alternate serves on the Commission when the 
regular member cannot attend or participate in a meeting. Each applicant’s application 
and resume is found in Attachment B. 

 
 

B-2-2Page 35 of 48



Attachment A 

 

Notice to Clerks, General Managers and Newspaper 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

B-2-3Page 36 of 48



NOTICE OF SELECTION OF PUBLIC MEMBER COMISSIONERS FOR THE 
SAN LUIS OBISPO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

 
 
The San Luis Obispo Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) is selecting a Regular and Alternate 
Public Members to serve on the Commission. LAFCO is an independent government agency charged 
with encouraging the orderly formation and development of local governmental agencies, preserving 
agricultural resources, discouraging urban sprawl, and encouraging the efficient provision of local 
government services. The key State Law that governs LAFCO is the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act as well as 
other laws. The Commission has the authority to approve or disapprove all annexations of land to and 
from cities and special districts in San Luis Obispo County.  
 
LAFCO has the authority to approve or disapprove the incorporation of new cities and the formation of 
new special districts. LAFCO also establishes Spheres of Influences (a 20-year growth boundary) for all 
City’s and Special Districts in the County. The Commission is composed of seven voting members 
representing local government and the public: two members are from the County Board of Supervisors, 
two members represent the City Councils, two members represent Special Districts, and one 
representative serves as the Public Member. 
 
The Public Member is to be selected by the six other Commission members at the March 18, 2021, 
LAFCO meeting. The Application Form and Resume are due by 5:00 p.m. on February 22, 2021. Both 
four-year terms end in December 2024. The regular public member appointed would serve as a “voting 
member”. The alternate member serves as the “voting member” when the regular member cannot 
attend the meeting. Regular LAFCO meetings are scheduled every month on the third Thursday at 9:00 
a.m. via Zoom during the Covid-19 pandemic.  Under normal circumstances, LAFCO meets in the San Luis 
Obispo County Board of Supervisors' Chambers in San Luis Obispo, with special meetings held as 
needed. The current regular member is Mr. Tom Murray and has expressed interest in being re-
appointed. 
 
Interested individuals must be residents of San Luis Obispo County and be able to regularly attend 
LAFCO meetings which are held on the third Thursday of each month. The individuals selected cannot be 
a current officer or employee of the County, a City or Special District within the county. Previous 
involvement in or experience with local government issues in San Luis Obispo County is helpful. The 
public member is a public official and is required to file a standard financial disclosure statement 
annually with the California Fair Political Practices Commission.  
 
Candidates for the position must complete an application form and provide a resume indicating 
applicable experience and qualifications. Application forms are available at the LAFCO office or online at 
www.slolafco.com. Application materials must be received by San Luis Obispo LAFCO, 1042 Pacific 
Street, Suite A, San Luis Obispo, CA 93401, on or before Monday, February 22, 2021 at 5:00 pm. The 
application may be submitted via e-mail to LAFCO Interim Executive Officer, David Church at 
Dchurch@slolafco.com. For more information, please contact Mr. Church at 805-788-2096 or by e-mail 
Dchurch@Slolafco.com. Thank you for your interest. 

B-2-4Page 37 of 48

mailto:Dchurch@Slolafco.com


B-2-5Page 38 of 48



B-2-6Page 39 of 48



Attachment B 

 

Applicant’s Application Form and Resume 

 

 

 

 

 

B-2-7Page 40 of 48



Application for Regular Member 

Applicant Tom Murray  

Submitted 2/16/2021 via email at 9:25 AM

B-2-8Page 41 of 48



B-2-9Page 42 of 48



Thomas M. Murray 

777 Manuela Way, Arroyo Grande, CA. 93420 

805 481-3395, 805 710-1082 cell, tmurrayinslo@gmail.com 

OBJECTIVE:  Appointment, SLO LAFCO, Public Member. 

EDUCATION:  1974 to 1976, Cal Poly SLO 

   1970 to 1972, Santa Monica College 

   1966 to 1969, Santa Monica High School, Diploma 

 

WORK EXPERIENCE:  1983 to 2015: Owner of Clean Cut Construction. Licensed General 
Contractor providing general contracting services including: 

 Consulting services including land use development and code compliance as well as 
construction defect consulting. 

 Mixed Use project development. 
 Custom residential construction services. 
 Remodeling construction services. 

GOVERNMENT EXPERIENCE: 

20012 TO Present, SLO LAFCO Commissioner, Public Member. 

 February 11 2012 to present, Appointed by Governor Brown to the Designated Local 
Authority for the former Redevelopment Agency of Pismo Beach under AB 26 X. Serving 
as DLA Chair. 

 2000 to 2012, serving as the alternate public member to SLO LAFCO. 
 1998 to 2004, Served Lucia Mar Unified School District Facility Advisory Committee 

responsible for review and recommendation of school sites, plans, contracts and 
oversight of expenditure of school bonds to Board of Trustees. 

 2006 to 2008 Served on the Lucia Mar USD Bond Oversight Committee mandated by 
state law to review expenditure of bond proceeds.  

 1996 appointed to the City of Arroyo Grande’s committee charged with developing the 
Economic Element for the General Plan Update. 
 

 

B-2-10Page 43 of 48



 

PRIVATE SECTOR EXPERIENCE: 

 29 Years as a General Contractor with operations primarily in SLO County. During that 
time, developed projects requiring Conditional Use Permits, successfully utilizing 
variances, incentives and other planning tools to craft projects. Successfully appealed 
projects on behalf of property owners and served as a consultant to Sun Power and First 
solar during the development of their utility scale projects as a subcontractor through 
Crotty Consulting Inc. During that time, developed and advocated for a local hiring plan 
as well as advocating for the approval of both projects.     

 2002, as a member of the Board of Directors of the South County Exploration Station, 
participated in the planning and advocacy of the Ramona Specific Plan in Grover Beach. 

 1999, as General Contractor, constructed South County Skate Park with a unique 
collaboration of contractors, volunteers and the City of Grover Beach. 

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE: 

 2011 to 2014, Board Directors for the Lucia Mar Foundation for Innovation. Founding 
member and currently head the committee charged with teacher relations. Assisted in 
obtaining a $250,000. grant from PG&E to fund training and operation of New Tech High 
School. 

 2005 to 2014 of Directors of SLO Green Build. Former Vice-President, head of 
Government Liaison, assisting in a septic reclamation project contract with SLO County, 
participate in mentoring of emerging young professionals. 

 2001 to 2003, Board of Directors for the South County Exploration Station 
 1999 to 2000 Board of Directors for the Boys and Girls Club of South San Luis Obispo 

County 
 1998 to 2000 Board of the Prevention Alliance of San Luis Obispo County. Working with 

agencies and the public for the reduction and prevention of high risk behavior among  
 youth of SLO County. 

AWARDS: 

 2001 Obispo Beautiful Award for Hampsey Remodeling Project. 
 1999 Proclamation by the City of Grover Beach honoring work in the development and 

construction of the South County Skate park 
 1999 Volunteer of the Year recognition by the Prevention Alliance 
 1999 Partner in Excellence awarded by the San Luis Obispo Charter of the Association of 

California School Administrators. 

B-2-11Page 44 of 48



 1996 Recognition for Exemplary Work with Children and Youth by the Children’s 
Services Network. 

 

ACTIVITIES: 

 Whitewater and Ocean Kayaking, Surfing, Whitewater Raft Guide and Oarsman. 
 Travel. 
 Furniture Design and Construction. 

 

REFRENCES: 

 Jim Erb, CPA, Assistant Auditor-Controller. jerb@co.ca.us, 805 781-5040. 
 Tom Jones, Director of Governmental Affairs, PG&E, tpjs@pge.com, 805 546-9729 
 Christopher Crotty, Crotty Consulting, crotty@crottyconsulting.com (619) 291-0407 

Publications: 

  

B-2-12Page 45 of 48



Application for Alternate Member 

Applicant Heather Jensen

 Submitted 2/18/2021 via US Mail 

B-2-13Page 46 of 48



B-2-14Page 47 of 48



February 13, 2021 

 
Heather B. Jensen 

569 May Street 

Arroyo Grande, CA 93420 

805- 489-0234 

 
My family has lived in Arroyo Grande since 1972 having moved from San Miguel after several 

years of residency. Since that relocation, I have been involved in a wide variety of organizations 

and activities in Arroyo Grande. It has been a wonderful area to live and to raise a family. I have 

been fortunate to be able to be very involved in the town of Arroyo Grande and various aspects 

of the County of San Luis Obispo. 

 

Having lived in San Luis Obispo County for nearly 50 years I have observed many changes in our 

County. During this time I have followed the land use development as well as the restrictions 

that have been implemented and I find that history very useful as I pursue this position with 

LAFCO. 

 

Since retiring from the Arroyo Grande Valley Chamber of Commerce in 2006 following 24 years 

of employment, I have been able to  be very selective in my community involvement.  After 

many years of volunteering in organizations that I have listed below, I now have the opportunity 

to pursue new avenues that have had a long time interest for me. 

 

LAFCO is a commission that has long had an appeal to me. So when I saw the opening to apply 

for the Public Member alternate position I felt the timing and position was the perfect 

opportunity to submit an application. 

 

Involvement: 

 
• San Luis Obispo Local Agency Formation Commission Alternate Public Member since 2016 
• Arroyo Grande Valley Chamber of Commerce CEO for 24 years. 

o  involved in local business issues, including promotions, government affairs, and 

education 

• One of five original Board Members that established the San Luis Obispo County 

Economic Development Corporation 

• Arroyo Grande Traffic Commission Member 

• Organizer and officer of Arroyo Grande Valley Harvest Festival 

• Leadership/ volunteer in local organizations: i.e.; 4-H, Boy Scouts, Youth Sports, PTA, 

Lucia Mar School District Committees 

• Arroyo Grande Police Department Community Advisory Committee 

I hope you will favorably consider my application. 

Heather B. Jensen 

B-2-15Page 48 of 48


	Item_A-3_StaffReport_CALAFCO-Activities_N.pdf
	CALAFCO Member LAFCo Dues FY 2021-22.pdf
	Letter to members on dues FY 2021-22
	LAFCO_Dues_2021-2022 as adopted
	CALAFCO 2021 Dues


	CALAFCO 2020 ANNUAL REPORT FINAL.pdf
	In 2019, CALAFCO began a two-year strategic plan to define the Association’s priorities and guide the work. There were three main strategic areas each with actionable goals for each of the two years.  This report highlights the achievements of the wor...
	A snapshot look at 2020 by the numbers





